
AGENDA 

Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) 

Policy Board Meeting 

1:30pm, Monday, June 9, 2014 

City Hall – City Council Chambers 

 

ROLL CALL 

AGENDA 

A. Minutes from the May 19, 2014 meeting 

B. Reports from Engineering staffs 

1. Project Status 

2. Projects being considered  

C. Report from MPO 

1. Project Status 

2. MPO Certification - June 9-10 

3. Technical and Citizens Committees 

4. Finances – MPO/INDOT Plans, CAMPO situation  

5. TIP Administrative Modifications:  4/24/14, 5/30/14, 6/3/14 

D.  New Business 

1. Resolution 2014-7 –Amend new and modified INDOT projects into TIP 

2. Resolution 2014-8 –Amend new and modified existing local projects into TIP  

E. Other Business 

F. Adjournment 
 



DRAFT Agenda Columbus Metropolitan Planning Process Planning Review 

June 9-10, 2014 

Monday, June 9, 2014 

9:00AM Review Team Pre-Review Meeting (FHWA & FTA only) 

10:00 AM Welcome and Introductions (All), Federal Objectives, Desk Review (FHWA, FTA) 

10:30 AM Status of 2010 Planning Certification Review Recommendations (CAMPO) 

11:15 AM Organizational Structure, Board Composition, and Planning Area Boundaries (CAMPO) 

11:45 AM Overview of Organizational Procedures and Agreements  

Noon Lunch 

1:30-3:00 PM- CAMPO Policy Board Meeting 

3:00-5:00 CAMPO Planning Activities 

• Status of freight and safety planning  (Joyce) 

• Planning for operations (Joyce) 

• Fiscal Constraint in the TIP and LRTP (Tony) 

• Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan and other transit issues (Tony) 

• Statement of Work (Michelle) 

• Conformity (Joyce) 

• Issues relating to 2040 Plan Update (Michelle) 

• Public Participation Plan (Michelle) 

• TIP Prioritization Process (Tony) 

• FHWA/FTA Planning Emphasis Area Updates (Quarterly Tracking, ADA, Pavement Management 
Systems, Function Classification Review) (All) 

Dinner Break? 

6:00PM FHWA/FTA Meeting with CAMPO CAC 

 

Tuesday, June 10th  

8:30am- Federal Team Discussion 

9:30am- Continue any topics necessary from Monday 

11:00am- Preliminary discussion of findings 



1 of 5 
 

CAMPO Policy Board Meeting 
May 19, 2014  

Draft - Meeting Minutes 
 
Member Attendees: 
Jorge Morales – County Council 
Zack Ellison – County Plan Commission 
Roger Lang – City Plan Commission 
Jim Ude – INDOT Seymour District 
Rick Flohr – County Commissioner 
 
Absent voting members: 
Mayor Kristen Brown 
Ryan Brand – City Council 
 
Staff: 
Laurence Brown – CAMPO staff 
 
 
Laurence Brown stated that this meeting would primarily be about Resolution 2014-4C.  

Zack Ellison called the meeting to order, CAMPO meeting for May 19, 2014.  

The minutes from the May 10, 2014 meeting were approved with corrections to a few typos.   

Roll call – 5 members were present, so a quorum exists.  

Zack Ellison asked if there was anything they need to do on the Statement of Work. 

Discuss the SOW in the realm of Agenda item C, combined. Laurence Brown said they would be 
discussing Resolution 2014-4C, named C because it is a change from the original.   

Zack Ellison stated that at the last meeting they never came to a conclusion about the funding of the 
Travel Demand Model.  It was determined that a special meeting was needed to further discuss the 
funding of the Travel Demand Model. 

Laurence Brown stated that changes were made to the final whereas; this project will not commence via 
a Notice to Proceed until after November 1, 2014. 

Laurence Brown told the Board that now they all have a notebook.  The notebook includes Creation 
documents, Interlocal agreements, Ordinance that makes CAMPO a part of the City, Bylaws, Statement 
of work, Long range plan. 



2 of 5 
 

Laurence Brown explained about the Complete Network, page 8 of the Statement of Work (SOW).  It 
takes 3 parts to make up a complete network plan.  The “Transportation Plan” is our complete network 
plan.  Step 1 is build a Travel Model, then build scenarios and model the alternatives, then document 
the plan.  

The Transportation Plan is a 25 year plan, we do not want it to get younger than 20 years.  MPOs are 
obligated to create a Transportation Plan every 5 years.  Last one was November 2011, so we are due in 
November 2016.   

Laurence put the Travel Model in the Statement of Work and it has to be approved by 3 bodies, Federal 
Highway, INDOT and CAMPO.  CAMPO approved it December 2012.  Budget approval in August 2013.  
Sent out RFQs last October 2013.  Selection committee was made up of Zack Ellison, Roger Lang, Eric Fry, 
Carl Malysz and Laurence Brown.  The committee read the proposals, interviewed the companies and 
chose BLA.    

When the Board approved the SOW, Laurence predicted a cost of $250,000, however he negotiated 
with BLA to do the project for $200,000.  Laurence took this to BOW, as has been custom to go to BOW.  
The Board tabled it.  The Mayor was concerned about cost of $200,000.  Laurence split the cost into 2 
parts, $130,000 for the Travel Demand Model to be done in 2014, and $70,000 for next year.  If $70,000 
isn’t in budget next year, Laurence will do it himself.  Laurence approached the Mayor with that idea, 
she felt like it needed to be pushed out, that the MPO had too many projects going on as is.  So 
Laurence has it programmed to start in November 2014. 

Laurence Brown asked the members of the Board if they had any questions.    

Roger Lang asked about funding and Laurence said that was coming up. 

Laurence Brown  further explained that Travel Demand Models are the secret to long range solutions.  
TDM can be used for other things besides long range planning.  Landuse planning, corridor studies, 
traffic impact analysis for new development, shift-change impacts.  

Zack Ellison asked if the TDM plays a part in helping us to understand traffic flow, like traffic impacted by 
railroad, flood, increased population on the westside?  How does a closure impact traffic?   

Laurence Brown said that yes it is used for all of these as well as for emergency evacuations. 

Rick Flohr asked is it a “living thing” in that it will change as changes are made? For instance, what will 
the impact be if Cummins changes shifts?  Rick said he always pictured the TDM as a book sitting on a 
shelf.   

Laurence Brown said that Columbus has never had a travel model.  Generally travel models are an 
important purpose of the MPO.   All MPOS except Columbus and Kokomo have Travel Demand Models.  
Laurence asked all the MPOs, do you have one and how do you use it?  Board could review responses. 



3 of 5 
 

Jorge Morales struggling to understand why we have some of the projects we have, when there seem to 
be other potential projects which would make things better faster. 

Zack Ellison said the survey answers of MPOs regarding their use of Travel Models were very 
enlightening.  Interesting how much importance they place on a Travel Demand Model.  

Are TDM able to be understood by Planners or INDOT?  Is the Travel Demand information only to be 
read by one person?   

Laurence Brown said no, that typically an outside traffic analysis company is contracted and we give 
them our model so they can analyze the area of their concern.     

Jorge Morales asked if a regular citizen can understand.   

Laurence Brown answered that typically you have a good person who runs the model, reads the results 
and makes it understandable for a citizen.  Put it in a map.  For instance; at a peak hour of the day will 
certain roads handle the traffic?  Map with red, blue, green lines.  The red line if reaching its capacity.  
Another line means it is reaching 70%, etc.   Have peak and non-peak hours.  Measures travel time point 
a to b, how many lanes, effects of transit use changes, land use elements.   

Jorge Morales asked if schools could use this for busses to coordinate with companies’ traffic.   

Rick Flohr says he has a grip on what this is.  What does Laurence need from the Board?  Let’s go over 
finances. 

Planned $130,000 in 2014 for the model and $70000 in 2015 or 2016 

Fed pay 80% of $130,000 or $104,000, locals pay 20% or $26,000  

County pays 1/3 or $8667, City pays 2/3 of or $17,333  

Laurence introduced Alan Whitted so that he could speak on his own behalf regarding an email that was 
sent to the Policy Board members about his opinion on CAMPO processes. Alan said he was with the City 
for 17 years.  He and Steve Ruble set up the MPO and set forth to delegate official business items to 
Board of Works, however just because they did it that way doesn’t mean it has to continue.  CAMPO 
could operate more like the Parks Board and bring the payment checks and balances internally. Alan 
didn’t want the email misconstrued. He is not trying to limit the CAMPO policy board’s authority or 
scope. 

Jorge Morales asked if this was going to be like the Parks Board situation.  For the Policy Board to 
change and revert back, will that be a fight?   

Zack Ellison said he sees it a little differently [than the Parks & Rec situation]; he does not want us to end 
up on front page of The Republic.  He said step one is for this policy board to approve this as a project 
we recommend. Laurence has done a good job with funding, banked money from years past, put money 



4 of 5 
 

aside this year, and stretched for the future. Today is not to decide how to fund it, but is it a project 
worthy of moving forward? 

Jorge Morales asked about the county commissioner’s willingness to pay 1/3 or 20%.  The City will pay 
2/3.  Do you already have an agreement with the City? 

Laurence says the City Council has looked at Laurence’s budget and projects and has approved this 
budget item.   

Jorge Morales asks why don’t we put in writing that the 2/3 is picked up by the City.    

Rick Flohr says it would be crystal clear then, however, there is resistance to this.  We witnessed it in the 
last meeting.   

Laurence says that the City Council is the financial decision making body for the City of Columbus and 
they have approved the budget. 

Jorge made a motion to approve Resolution 2014-4c with the modification to add to the resolution a 
statement that specifically states the city will pay for 2/3 of the local costs, and to include the actual 
costs that entails.   

Laurence indicated he could add to the line that states the county would pay 1/3, a similar line that the 
city would pay 2/3, and include what those costs are.  

This motion was seconded by Roger Lang.  No discussion.  The Policy Board voted unanimously (5-0) to 
accept Jorge’s motion.   

Meeting adjourned.  

*The final approved version of the Resolution-2014-4c.1 is on page 5 of these minutes.  





 

 

Memorandum 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

To: INDOT/CAMPO Policy Board 

From: Laurence Brown 

Date: April 24, 2014 

Subject: Administrative Modifications 

 

The following administrative modifications have been made to the CAMPO TIP.  These are changes to 

projects that are already in the TIP, and are considered minor changes, and thus “administrative 

modifications” according to CAMPO Bylaw criteria:  

 

5.1 Thresholds for Amendments & Administrative Modifications 

The following are CAMPO’s criteria for Amendments; changes that do not meet these criteria are 

considered Administrative Modifications.   

A. Major change in project cost: A change of 20% or more in the total listed cost, but not less 

than:  $100,000 for a local project, and $500,000 for an INDOT project.  

B. Major change in project date: A change of more than 1 year.  

C. Major change in funding source: When the change increases the local match (due to a 

change in match percentage) by more than: $50,000 for local projects, and $250,000 for 

INDOT projects. 

Project changes: 

1. DES#1006243, on SR 58, Small Structure Replacement , 1.00 mile west of I-65, changing the 

cost of Right-of-Way from $39,500 to $24,500, and moving it from 2014 to 2015.  

2.  DES#1382135, on SR 11, Bridge Deck Overlay over Opossum Creek, 2.04 miles S of SR 46, 

changing the cost of Construction from $36,000 to $54,000.  

3. DES#1382144 , on SR 7, Bridge Deck Overlay over Brush Creek, 0.09 miles N of US 31, 

changing the cost of Construction from $57,300 to $74,000.   

 

The INDOT detailed spreadsheet containing these administrative modifications is included in the email 

with this memo.  

 

Laurence Brown 

CAMPO Director 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
To: INDOT/CAMPO Policy Board 
From: Laurence Brown 
Date: May 30, 2014 
Subject: Administrative Modifications 

 
The following administrative modifications have been made to the CAMPO TIP.  These are changes to 
projects that are already in the TIP, and are considered minor changes, and thus “administrative 
modifications” according to CAMPO Bylaw criteria:  
 
5.1 Thresholds for Amendments & Administrative Modifications 

The following are CAMPO’s criteria for Amendments; changes that do not meet these criteria are 
considered Administrative Modifications.   
A. Major change in project cost: A change of 20% or more in the total listed cost, but not less 

than:  $100,000 for a local project, and $500,000 for an INDOT project.  
B. Major change in project date: A change of more than 1 year.  
C. Major change in funding source: When the change increases the local match (due to a 

change in match percentage) by more than: $50,000 for local projects, and $250,000 for 
INDOT projects. 

Project changes: 
1. DES#1297755, 1297756 are Sign Replacement projects for signs below reflectivity standards. 

There were lists as 80% reimbursable, but they are 90%.  
2.  DES#0500866, Rocky Ford Rd project, will still occur in Calendar year 2015, but after, July 1, 

so modifying Construction & Construction Engineering to Fiscal Year 2016.  
3. DES#1172728 is to replace a paratransit bus.  It was to be replaced in 2013, but ColumBUS 

Transit is purchasing it in the next month, so moving it 2014.     
4. DES#1296604, SR58 Bridge Replacement, cost of PE went up from $86,000 to $144,723.   

 
The changes are outlined on the chart on the following page. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
The INDOT detailed spreadsheet containing item 4 is included in the email with this memo.  
 
Laurence Brown  
CAMPO Director 
 

DES# Road/Item Work type Location Program
Funding 

entity
Phase Year  Federal   Match  Total Change

1297755 Signage
Sign Replacement - 

City
Replace signs below 

reflectivity requirements
HSIP CAMPO CN 2016 $192,206 $48,051 $240,257

90/10% = 
$216,231 / 24,026

1297756 Signage
Sign Replacement - 

County
Replace signs below 

reflectivity requirements
HSIP CAMPO CN 2016 $192,206 $48,051 $240,257

90/10% = 
$216,231 / 24,026

CN 2015 $3,280,000 $820,000 $4,100,000 move to 2016

CE 2015 $496,000 $124,000 $620,000 move to 2016

1172728 Bus
Call-a-bus rolling stock 

purchase
5307 FTA 2013 $48,000 $12,000 $60,000 move to 2014

PE 2014 $68,800 $17,200 $86,000 

RW 2015 $32,000 $8,000 $40,000 

change to $144,723    
$115,778/$28,945

1296604
Bridge Replacement, 

Concrete
7.9m W of I-65/Branch 

White Creek
 STP INDOTSR58

Rocky Ford 
Rd

0500866
Road Reconstruction 
(3R/4R Standards)

Rocky Ford Rd from 
Taylor Rd to Talley Rd

STP CAMPO



 

 

Memorandum 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
To: INDOT/CAMPO Policy Board 
From: Laurence Brown 
Date: June 3, 2014 
Subject: Administrative Modifications 

 
The following administrative modifications have been made to the CAMPO TIP.  These are changes to 
projects that are already in the TIP, and are considered minor changes, and thus “administrative 
modifications” according to CAMPO Bylaw criteria:  
 
5.1 Thresholds for Amendments & Administrative Modifications 

The following are CAMPO’s criteria for Amendments; changes that do not meet these criteria are 
considered Administrative Modifications.   
A. Major change in project cost: A change of 20% or more in the total listed cost, but not less 

than:  $100,000 for a local project, and $500,000 for an INDOT project.  
B. Major change in project date: A change of more than 1 year.  
C. Major change in funding source: When the change increases the local match (due to a 

change in match percentage) by more than: $50,000 for local projects, and $250,000 for 
INDOT projects. 

Project changes: 
1. DES#0710814 Bridge Replacement on Rocky Ford Rd as part of DES#0500866, will still occur 

in Calendar year 2015, but after, July 1, so modifying Construction & Construction Engineering 
to Fiscal Year 2016.  This was inadvertently left off of an Administrative Modification dated 
5/30/14 which moved DES#0500866 from FY2015 to FY 2016. 

 
Laurence Brown  
CAMPO Director 



Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization  1 of 2 
Resolution 2014 – 7 

RESOLUTION 2014 – 7 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND NEW INDOT PROJECTS AND MODIFY EXISTING PROJECTS 
INTO THE SFY 2012-2016 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 

 
WHEREAS, the Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) is the designated 

Metropolitan Planning Organization the City of Columbus and Bartholomew County; and 
 
WHEREAS, development of the annual TIP, listing all federally funded and regionally significant 

transportation projects is a requirement of the U.S. Department of Transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, INDOT has specific maintenance and improvement projects on their state-owned facilities 

which are in the CAMPO planning area (Bartholomew County) and thus must be in the TIP if 
federal funds are to be expended on these projects, and 

 
WHEREAS, the TIP is developed by the staff of CAMPO for the Policy Board, and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution has been reviewed and recommended for approval by the Technical 

Committee, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Technical Committee recommends that the City partner with INDOT to incorporate 

concepts in the State Street Corridor Plan and other related plans regarding DES#1383670;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the CAMPO Policy Board that the following projects be 
amended into the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for SFY 2012-2016: 
 

 

Route DES Work Type Location  Fund Phase Year Cost Reason

SR 46 1400586 Traffic Signals 
Modernization

SR 46 (2nd St) and California, and 
SR 46 (3rd St) and California

 STP CN 2015 $80,000 kinned with 1383670

PE 2015 $175,000 
RW 2017 $160,000 
CN 2017 $73,000 
PE 2015 $150,000 
RW 2017 $30,000 
CN 2017 $10,000 
PE 2015 $10,000 
RW 2015 $10,000 
CN 2016 $142,100 
PE 2015 $20,000 
CN 2016 $134,703 
PE 2015 $20,000 
CN 2016 $134,703 
PE 2015 $20,000 
CN 2016 $84,293 
PE 2015 $20,000 
CN 2016 $84,293 

1297018 Pipe Lining
North of the Jackson County line, 
1.22 miles South of Small Creek  STP PE 2015 $35,000 New Project

Various 1400582 Raised Pavement 
Markings, Refurb

Many locations in Seymour District, 
specific locations attached.

 HSIP CN 2015 $200,000 New Project

PE - Preliminary Engineering (Design, etc.),  RW - Right-of-Way,     CN - Construction
 - Already in TIP

SR 58

I-65

Bridge Deck 
Overlay

New Project

1400477 Sounthbound Lanes (SBL) IM New Project

1400476 0.66 mile north of US 31 over 
Louisville & Indiana RR Northbound 

IM

New Project

1400474 4.32 miles south of SR 252 over US 
31 Northbound Lanes (NBL)

IM New Project

1400475 Sounthbound Lanes (SBL) IM

New PE Phase only1173616 Bridge Deck 
Overlay

Bridge over Branch White Creek, 
9.57 miles west of I-65

STP

New Project  - addition 
cost: $352,616

STP2.42 miles west of I-65 at RP 
119+83

Small Structure 
Replacement

1298339

New Project  - addition 
cost: $832,106

SR 7 1298632 Other Intersection 
Improvement

Intersection of SR 3 to US 31 STP



Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization  2 of 2 
Resolution 2014 – 7 

 
Adopted this 9th day of June 2014 

 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
Zack Ellison, Chair 

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Laurence Brown, CAMPO Director 



Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization  1 of 1 
Resolution 2014-8 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2014 – 8 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND AND MODIFY EXISTING LOCAL PROJECTS 
 IN THE SFY 2012-2016 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 

 
WHEREAS, the Columbus Area Metropolitan Planning Organization is the designated Metropolitan 

Planning Organization, responsible for transportation planning in the City of Columbus and 
Bartholomew County, and  

 
WHEREAS, development of the annual TIP, listing all federally funded and regionally significant 

transportation projects is a requirement of the U.S. Department of Transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Columbus has adjusted plans for projects in the existing, adopted TIP, and 
 
WHEREAS, the TIP is developed by the staff of CAMPO for the Policy Board, and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution has been reviewed and recommended for approval by the Technical 

Committee; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the CAMPO Policy Board that the following projects be 
amended, as noted by the strikethroughs and highlights below, in the Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) for SFY 2012-2016: 

 
Approved this 9th day of June, 2014 

 
 

________________________________ 
Zack Ellison, President 

 
________________________________ 

Laurence Brown, Director 

DES# Road/Item Work type Location Program
Funding 

entity
Phase Year  Federal   Match  Total Change Increase

PE 2015 $38,000 $9,000 $47,000
 raise to $195,000   
$156,000/$39,000

$148,000 

RW 2015 $20,000 $5,000 $25,000 new Phase $25,000 

CN 2016 $375,000 $94,000 $469,000
raise to $650,000   

$520,000/$130,000
$181,000

CE 2016 $56,000 $14,000 $70,000
raise to $130,000   

$104,000/$26,000
$60,000

$586,000 $1,000,000 $414,000

RW 2016 $32,000 $8,000 $40,000

CN 2017 $320,000 $80,000 $400,000

CE 2017 $48,000 $12,000 $60,000

: Changed : New

CAMPO1173674 Maple St
Road 

Construction

Extension of 
Maple St to US 
31 adjacent to 

Northside 
Middle School

STP

Change from STP to TE/TA

Historic 
Bridge #26, 
People Trail 
over Haw 

Creek

1173209
Bridge 

Rehabilitatio
n Or Repair

Stub trail for 
Bridge #26 

relocation and 
integration into 

People Trail 
system

STP CAMPO


	A. Minutes from the March 6 meeting
	B. Reports from Engineering staffs
	1. Project Status
	2. Projects being considered

	C. Report from MPO
	1. Project Status
	2. MPO Certification - June 9-10
	3. TIP Administrative Modifications:  4/24/14, 5/30/14

	D.  New Business
	1. Resolution 2014-7 –Amend new and modified INDOT projects into TIP

	E. Communications from Committee members on matters not included in the agenda
	F. Adjournment
	CAMPO  2012 - 2016 TIP after 042414 Admin Mod.pdf
	Project listing

	CAMPO  2012 - 2016 TIP after 053014 Admin Mod.pdf
	Project listing

	Agenda 14_06_09.pdf
	A. Minutes from the March 10 meeting
	B. Reports from Engineering staffs
	1. Project Status
	2. Projects being considered

	C. Report from MPO
	1. Project Status
	2. MPO Certification - June 9-10
	3. Technical and Citizens Committees
	4. TIP Administrative Modifications:  4/24/14, 5/30/14

	D.  New Business
	1. Resolution 2014-7 –Amend new and modified INDOT projects into TIP

	E. Other Business
	F. Adjournment

	Agenda 14_06_09.pdf
	A. Minutes from the May 19, 2014 meeting
	B. Reports from Engineering staffs
	1. Project Status
	2. Projects being considered

	C. Report from MPO
	1. Project Status
	2. MPO Certification - June 9-10
	3. Technical and Citizens Committees
	4. Finances – MPO/INDOT Plans, CAMPO situation
	5. TIP Administrative Modifications:  4/24/14, 5/30/14

	D.  New Business
	1. Resolution 2014-7 –Amend new and modified INDOT projects into TIP

	E. Other Business
	F. Adjournment




